RFP-15-17 
Technical Proposal
Attachment F

Instructions: 
· Please supply ALL requested information in the yellow-shaded areas and indicate any attachments that have been included. 
· Document all attachments and which section and question they pertain to.

2.4.1 Mandatory Requirements

2.4.1.1 Mail Services

1. By responding to the mail services portion of the RFP, the respondent agrees it is capable of and would, if awarded, perform all the mail-related services included in this RFP and adhere to the service requirements and conditions as they are written below and in the scope of work contained in the RFP. Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



2. The respondent shall have the ability to process metered mail and permit indicia mail as postage payment options.  Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



3. The respondent shall offer 1st class presort services and Standard A presort service that utilizes drop shipping for maximum postage discounts via destination entry of the mail.  Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



4. The respondent shall have the capability to read and/or apply planetary code barcoding to enable the use of the USPS Confirm program for mail delivery and delivery trends.  Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



5. The respondent shall have the capability to provide USPS Delivery Point Validation to ensure maximum postal discounts when required by the USPS. The respondent also must be willing to sign for all incoming Certified Mail. Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



6. Please confirm your ability to accommodate “future” mail dates.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



7. The respondent must have the ability to capture image and scan line data of any remittance and correspondence received for any Agency including two-sided documents. The respondent must have the ability to process, image capture, and transmit manually extracted items by mail packet so that the Agencies can clearly distinguish and identify each unit. Please confirm your acceptance.  
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



8. Any areas utilized in the performance of services described in this RFP must be secured and access must be limited only to those who have the required security clearances. Please confirm your acceptance. 
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



9. The respondent will fund and ensure designated postal accounts are maintained and the renewal of accounts is performed in a timely manner. The respondent will bill in arrears for postage funds used in each USPS account. Billing will be based upon the amount of postage entered into a designated account at the beginning of each month. The respondent will seek to have the minimum required postage dollars available. Arrearage must not exceed $3,000,000 at any given time. The respondent will provide postage invoices every 10 days. Payment of each invoice will be due within 35 days of the invoice date. Payments received after 35 days will incur interest charges at a rate of 1 percent per month on all overdue charges until paid in full. The respondent will provide postage information on usage monthly and, upon reasonable request, by department. Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



10. The Indiana Department of Revenue (DOR) requires that it have a dedicated courier (dedicated individual or individuals) for the pick-up and delivery of its mail items. In addition to one primary driver, DOR also request to have a trained backup driver available. Additionally, DOR’s courier(s) must be provided with a cell phone, at the respondent’s expense, so DOR can contact the driver at any time. Lastly, no mail or documents from other agencies shall be intermingled with DOR’s mail or documents. Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



11. Prior to providing services, all personnel providing courier services to DOR must first be subject to a fingerprint-based background check, at the expense of the respondent or its subcontractor(s), and must clear a background check with DOR. Any individuals who will be handling cash or checks for other agencies must also be subjected to the same background checks. Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



12. Couriers are not to leave mail in vehicles overnight. Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



2.4.1.2 Print/Copy Services

1. By responding to the print and copy services portion of the RFP, the respondent agrees it is capable of and would, if awarded, perform all the print-related services included in this RFP and adhere to the service requirements and conditions as they are written below and in the scope of work contained in the RFP. Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



2. The respondent will provide full reporting, reconciliation and management of all insertion, reprint and mail jobs for participating agencies. Please confirm your acceptance of and ability to meet this requirement. 
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



3. The respondent shall provide to any agency utilizing data print services a daily report including: the names of files printed, the number of files printed, the names of files inserted and mailed, and the number of files inserted and mailed. Please confirm your acceptance of and ability to meet this requirement. 
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



4. The respondent must be able to accommodate various sizes and shapes of envelopes and forms. Additionally, various paper sizes and weights will be used for production of print jobs, and the respondent must be able to accommodate all combinations. Please confirm your acceptance of and ability to meet this requirement. 
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



5. Files transmitted to the respondent will contain mail pieces of various sizes, as small as one or two pages and as large as 50 pages. The respondent must be able to accommodate the varying job sizes. Please confirm your acceptance of and ability to meet this requirement. 
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



6. All overrun and re-synch of documents containing financial instruments or confidential information will comply with all IRS safeguard procedures and be shredded before leaving the facility. Shredding processes for incorrectly printed jobs containing financial or otherwise personal or confidential information must be done under secure conditions and include a chain of custody process, which will be approved by the State. The Department of Revenue is capable of handling the shredding of the aforementioned documents. If the respondent chooses to utilize DOR for this process, the respondent agrees to pay $0.20 per pound, with three (3) percent annual increases. Please confirm your acceptance.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



7. The State may require a two (2) percent random sample (minimum of ten (10) finished pieces) from each job run produced. No invoice will be paid until this sample has been reviewed and accepted. Indicate whether the respondent is willing to agree.	
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



2.4.1.3 Security

1. The respondent must certify to compliance with DOR’s reading of FISMA, NIST SP800-53, and security best practices. Please submit a statement that you will agree to DOR’s terms in Section 1.4.1.3 of the RFP.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	



2. Please confirm that your company will provide DOR with the STIG assessment (provided by DOR), plan of action and milestones (if or when a check is failed) if selected for oral presentations.
	Ability To Meet?
(YES or NO)

	




2.4.2 General Mail and Print/Copy Services

2.4.2.1 Billing

1. The State currently utilizes a centralized billing practice, with the Indiana Department of Administration receiving and paying invoices on behalf of all State agencies. The State intends to move away from this approach, with the respondent being responsible for directly billing and collecting payment from each agency. Please describe the respondent’s ability to provide monthly account billings in electronic format including usage by agency, line item, job name, applicable form IDs, quantities, unit costs if applicable, and item type.  Indicate ability to charge to multiple account entities as well as consolidated summary billing to one entity as required by the State.  The respondent also must be able to develop billing procedures for numerous cost centers, divisions and projects. All postage is to be invoiced in arrears. Please confirm and describe your abilities to meet these requirements. Additionally, please include a sample of your billing for an account similar in scope to the State.  Ideally, the sample invoice should include printing, copying, mail production, postage, and courier charges on a single invoice. 
	



2. Please describe your willingness and ability to accommodate, within reason, different billing schedules for individual agencies (e.g. the Department of Workforce Development receiving data print invoices weekly, while all other agencies are invoiced monthly). 
	



3. The respondent shall maintain all invoices issues to the State pursuant to Professional Services Contract Clause 4, Access to Records. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain. 
	



4. The respondent will manage the payment to the USPS for postage and compile all the necessary paperwork involving the mailings with the USPS. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



5. The respondent will provide postage inventory and internal charge-back accounts monthly, including business reply and postage due funds for participating agencies. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



2.4.2.2 Reporting

1. Please describe the respondent’s ability to provide monthly/quarterly/annual management reports in electronic format including usage by agency and by line item and item type.  Quarterly and/or annual reporting should also include cost savings and suggested specifications changes to reduce cost that were accepted or denied.  Please also describe the respondent's ability to provide ad hoc reports upon request.
	



2. Immediate accessibility of reporting should include (but is not limited to):
A. Historical tracking of mail and printing/copying
B. Unique piece information
C. Track inbound and outbound mail
D. Coordinate and track dates on print/mail items requiring timely taxpayer response
E. Usage volumes for print and copy center
F. Detailed specifications of all print/copy jobs
G. The respondent’s performance against the performance targets of 100% mail piece integrity, 99% on-time delivery, 100% accuracy, and year-over-year (YOY) cost savings

Provide sample reporting relevant to the scope of this RFP.
	



2.4.2.3 Quality and Performance Factors

1. Provide evidence of compliance with NIST SP 800-53 and IRS PUB 1075. Evidence shall include the report of the respondent’s self assessment of information technology (IT) assets, processes, practices, and facilities against security criteria from aforementioned documents. The first of these self assessments shall be provided with the RFP response. This assessment should be qualitative in nature. The respondent should review the aforementioned publications and provide their compliance with each point. 
	



2. Describe how the proposed solution provides its own data security. 
	



3. Acknowledges that the information DOR provides may include personally identifiable information and it is the respondent’s obligation to keep all such accessed information confidential and secure. Accordingly, the respondent shall purge all information received from DOR at the end of the calendar year in which the data was received, provided that DOR may extend such period if and solely to the extent such information is retained thereafter in archival form to assist DOR in performing statistical analysis required for DOR’s legal or regulatory compliance efforts. 
	



4. Please certify that the data processed during the performance of this contract will be completely purged from all data storage components of the respondent’s computer facility at the end of the calendar year in which the data was received. 
	



5. Please certify Please certify that any confidential taxpayer information and data remaining in any storage component pending such purge will be safeguarded to prevent unauthorized disclosures. 
	



6. Please describe the respondent’s quality assurance policies, procedures, and structure.  Detail how quality issues will be resolved for the State.  Please provide an example of a quality issue that occurred for another customer and include: how the problem was resolved, how quickly was it resolved, and at what level of management it was resolved.
	



7. Please detail the respondent’s quality certifications (e.g. ISO-9001) and any relevant employee certifications.  Please provide detailed information on your company’s quality program.
	



8. The State strives for improved management and increased efficiencies in our systems and processes.  Describe the respondent's formal continuous improvement program.  Please also provide an overview of the respondent’s recent continuous improvement initiatives that have led to process improvements and cost reduction, with specific emphasis on ways that these initiatives will benefit the State.  
	



9. The State will consider the respondent the sole point of contact for these services and, with regard to compliance with service level agreements and other performance standards, will hold the respondent completely responsible for the work of its subcontractors, the coordinated billing, and the payment to its subcontractors. First, please confirm your willingness to accept this responsibility. Additionally, please describe your processes for monitoring subcontractor performance and addressing any issues that may arise.
	



10. Describe the respondent’s commitment to staying on top of the latest developments in the mailing and print/copy industry, and how you would use any advancements to benefit the State. Describe the latest developments in the mailing and print/copy industry that you believe would apply to the State’s operations and needs as described in the RFP.
	



11. The State anticipates an implementation period of six months between award the successful respondent’s go-live date. Please confirm your abilities to implement your solutions in this amount of time, or possibly less. Please provide an overview of your implementation plan and capabilities of assuming all awarded services by the go-live date of the contract without any lapses or deficiencies in service.
	



12. The State of Indiana is expecting successful respondent(s) to meet the various scheduling needs of more than seventy-four (74) agencies with a ninety-nine (99) percent on-time delivery rate for items on this contract. On-time delivery shall be defined as all requested items delivered (or mailed in cases where items are direct mailed) on or before the user-specified due date on the order, except in the case of author’s alterations.  This applies to final products as well as job proofs. Orders will vary greatly in volumes and specifications, but the awarded respondent(s) will be expected to meet the delivery requirements for all orders.  This includes early morning incoming mail pick up requirements for agencies receiving funds. Please confirm your willingness to accept these requirements. Please indicate how the respondent has been able to achieve this for other similar clients and how the respondent plans to achieve these goals.  Also indicate how certified mail will be handled and who will sign and date cards. Lastly, if available, please provide evidence or reports as to the respondent’s on-time percentage at sites of similar size and scope for the most recent time period.
	



13. Describe the level of mail security that the respondent will provide at their Government Center and other State production facility(ies) and the respondent’s plan to maintain security and confidentiality of production print and mail from data stream to mail stream.  In addition, please provide detailed documentation of your experience and certifications in secure mail services. 
	


14. During normal business hours, the State shall have reasonable access at any location where work is being conducted or inventory is stored, to any and all State Client Data in the possession, custody or control of the respondent, or an affiliate, in whatever format. The State shall not be required to give prior notice before visiting such locations. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



2.4.2.4 Technology and Equipment – General

1. Please describe the Internet technology services that the respondent has available, including but not necessarily limited to: electronic file transfer (email, ftp, and website submission), billing support, and electronic communication. 
	



2. Detail what software (including versions) and operating systems the respondent will utilize to support the needs of the State.  Describe how often this type of technology is updated and what types of files the respondent is able to accept from customers.	
	



3. Please list the equipment you propose to utilize for the performance of duties described herein, including model numbers, model years, specifications/capabilities, and any other pertinent information. Additionally, please confirm your awareness and acceptance that the State shall not be responsible for the maintenance, repairs, or updating of this equipment.
	



4. Describe the respondent's maintenance protocols in place.  Include specifics on preventative solutions, maintenance staff on-site, typical repair turnaround times, etc. Please confirm that the respondent’s maintenance personnel can and will make resolving any issues potentially impacting the State’s business and service level agreements its top priority. Confirm that the respondent shall ensure the availability of equipment maintenance personnel during normal business hours.
	



5. The respondent must maintain a level of facilities security that meets the state’s requirements, including card access to the processing facility, surveillance cameras, and adequate alarm and security systems.  The respondent must also maintain a high level of data security including controlled access to Agency mail and maintaining documented data security policies.  Please detail your facility and data security procedures.
	



6. The respondent will provide and maintain all equipment required to provide the services listed in this RFP, as described. Equipment utilized must match, or exceed in quality or quantity, the equipment proposed in the response to this RFP. The respondent will maintain ownership of this equipment following the expiration of the contract. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



7. The respondent must utilize a secure e-mail management system for incoming and outgoing email. This system must also be integrated with a customer relations management system. Agencies shall be allowed to select this service on an as-needed basis based on their own requirements. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement and describe your abilities to meet it.
	




2.4.2.5 Customer Service

1. The State seeks maximum customer satisfaction at all levels of management and staff.  Please indicate how the respondent tracks customer service and provide evidence or reports for the most recent time period. Provide detail on your company’s customer satisfaction processes.
	



2. Please describe the on-site operational account representatives that will serve the State under this contract.  Include the following information:
A. Your acceptance of the requirement to provide business and technical support representatives during the hours specified in the RFP, with after-hours technical support available, when needed, for production print jobs.  
B. The job descriptions and typical industry qualifications of your customer service personnel and an organization chart or description showing the structure of the on-site customer service team that will be provided for the State.
C. Indicate who the backup personnel are if the dedicated representatives are not available, personnel such as human resources, training, etc.
D. The locations and accessibility of offsite management and support personnel such as human resources, training, etc.
	



3. Please provide background information on the experience of the dedicated Account Representatives in managing a new account with similar requirements for the State in mail and print. Also, please describe the access the State users will have to graphic designers, press personnel, and other individuals that will be performing the work on behalf of the State.
	



4. Please explain how on-site Account Representatives will be available to respond to the State's needs Monday through Friday 8 a.m. to 6 p.m., as well as after hours in the event of matters of urgency arise (Specify name, title, email, phone, fax, other).
	



5. Explain how the respondent will work with the State in terms of job prioritization and scheduling for the more than seventy (70) State agencies, all with different mailing and printing/copying needs, and the related communication and issue resolution processes.  Include a detailed description of the respondent’s plan for issues surrounding internal capacity constraints.
	



6. The respondent will design a procedures manual and update the procedures manual on an ongoing basis, as needed. Such documented procedures will remain property of the State. Additionally, data related to State business will remain the property of the State. The respondent will provide the State with a mail services guide, which will become property of the State and can be used as an internal marketing tool. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



7. Whenever the respondent, or any of its subcontractors, encounters any difficulty delaying or threatening to delay the timely performance of the of the services in this RFP, the respondent will immediately give notice thereof, in writing, to the ordering agency representative and the State’s contract representative. Such notice shall not, in any way, constitute a basis for an extension of the delivery schedule or be construed as a waiver by the State or ordering agency of any rights or remedies to which it is entitled by law or pursuant to provisions of the contract. However, failure to give such notice may be grounds for denial of any request for an extension of the delivery schedule because of such delay. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirement as written, please explain.
	




2.4.2.6 Postage Factors and Cost Reductions

1. The State currently spends more than $10 million annually in postage with the USPS.  Describe how the respondent would handle the printing, sorting, and mailing of the State's materials to maximize postal discounts to reduce this amount.  Describe how the respondent's subcontractors would fit into this process as well. 
	



2. The State desires a guaranteed fixed rate pricing model to ensure every mail piece has the same costs with no dependence on mail qualification or other operational considerations with the respondent.  As USPS rates change, the respondent’s pricing percentage increases will be limited to the percentage of change in USPS rates.  Please indicate your company’s plans for keeping the State’s postage costs fixed as much as is possible.  
	



3. The respondent shall offer USPS certified software for any mail to meet the USPS Move Update Requirement for 1st class presorted mail.  The offering of this software shall be priced as a flat fee per mail stream to simplify budgeting and billing. Please specify the software used and the electronic reporting capability for returned mail address correction.
	



4. The State is interested in working with mail specialists dedicated to reducing the State's postage spending.  The respondent will provide a minimum of one (1) dedicated on-site representative with USPS Mailpiece Quality Control (MQC) certification. Please confirm your acceptance and describe additional training and certifications held by mailing specialist(s) who may be assigned full time to the State of Indiana and their knowledge of postal regulations.
	



5. Describe the respondent’s ability and willingness to provide design and product specification assistance to the State users, including improvement ideas in the areas of production, shipping, quality, or cost.  At minimum, the respondent will have one (1) USPS MQC representative dedicated to this effort.  Additional training and certifications will be given special consideration.
	



6. The State seeks to reduce mail and print/copy service costs on a continuous basis.  Indicate whether the respondent is willing to guarantee the identification of year-over-year cost savings opportunities.  If yes, specify the percentage of savings for each year of the contract term.  Successful savings achievement will be required for consideration of contract extension.
	



7. The State is interested in moving towards eliminating unnecessary mailing, printing and copying.  The State also recognizes that significant cost savings exist throughout the range of services covered in this RFP.  Describe the respondent’s ability, willingness, and proposed approach to work with the State to meet this goal.  Please describe in detail your company’s plan to ensure year-over-year service improvements and cost savings.  The State believes cost savings opportunities justify trained cost avoidance personnel dedicated to the respondent’s on-site State operation.  Please specify if the State will incur any additional charges for your quality assurance/cost avoidance program.
	



8. Describe the respondent’s ability, willingness, and proposed approach to provide assistance to the State in an effort to establish standard specifications across all agencies.
	



2.4.2.7 Escalators

1. Provide any proposed escalators to be used in years three and four.  The escalator should be referencing the total annual cost of each year following the first two.   Show the indicators or indexes used to arrive at any increase to the base cost with your recommended “not to exceed” cap.  The State will consider all Respondent submissions in this area but will not be obligated to accept the escalators as-proposed. 
	



2.4.2.8 Architecture Requirements

1. The respondent must validate that the application conforms to the Assistive Technology Policy (Section 508).  This should be done by submitting a Voluntary Product Accessibility Template (VPAT) if already available or completing the Assistive Technology Compliance Evaluation Form (Attachment L) that should be an attachment to the RFP.
	



2.4.3 Mail Services

2.4.3.1 Technology and Equipment – Mail

1. The respondent must have a system in place to print and mail certified mail pieces and produce reports for this type of mail piece and all costs associated with certified mail.  Certified mail piece numbers are to be electronically transferred back to agencies. Please describe your ability to meet these requirements. 
	



2. Please describe your tool through which agencies may compare rates, ship and track letters, express documents and certified mail from the desktop. The system should allow for items to be sent through USPS as well as third-party carriers (i.e. UPS and FedEx) and include current rates for all options.
	



2.4.3.2 Correspondence Mail Services

1. The respondent will provide the following services regarding the processing of outbound mail requiring entry into the USPS or other mail delivery channel: 1. Pick up department stamped and unstamped mail requiring application of meter postage and parcels from route and all existing mail collection points services. 2. All machinable outbound mail prepared for mailing by 4:45 p.m. for the Indiana Government Center campus and 4:30 p.m. for Amerixplex shall be processed to the appropriate carrier the same day, with exception of standard mail, which will be handled on a project-by-project basis. 3. Mail received after the daily cut-off times can go full-post the same day or next day at the pre-sort rate, depending on agency specifications. Any mail that is received after daily cut-off times and is full posted shall be reported to the impacted agencies. 4. All mail to be metered will be separated by budget code, and into class of mail, weighted and the appropriate postage applied. 5. The respondent will receive, process, deliver and track all inbound accountable mail/packages for participating agencies. The respondent will require all inbound accountable mail/packages to be delivered to a mutually agreed-upon area. Please confirm your acceptance of these requirements. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept all requirements as written, please explain.
	



2.4.3.3 Courier Services
1. The respondent, or its subcontractor, will provide mail delivery services to State facilities outside the IGC campus but within the Indianapolis area (see Attachment I for locations). Courier services include the pickup and delivery of mail, interoffice mail, UPS items and FedEx items to locations inside the Government Center complex, Department of Health (ISDH), Bureau of Motor Vehicles (BMV) and Department of Child Services (DCS) Child Support Bureau (CSB). Please confirm your acceptance of these requirements. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



2. In addition to the standard mail delivery services, the respondent will be responsible for the daily ISDH treasurer’s run, during which a briefcase must be picked up from the ISDH office at 2 North Meridian Street in Indianapolis and delivered to the Treasurer’s office by noon. ISDH will provide detailed instructions which will require the respondent to verify cash counts, sign and date verification forms and delivery a locked briefcase containing cash or checks. The process will begin daily at 11 a.m. and takes approximately 45 minutes to complete. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



3. Once daily, Monday through Friday and observing the State’s published holiday schedule, the respondent will perform a distribution run for the DCS CSB that will involve delivering mail to the following stops, some of which may not be included in Attachment I: Room 144 in the Indiana Statehouse and rooms E306, E442, W364, N013 and N402 in the Indiana Government Center. Additional details can be found in Section 1.4.3.3 of the RFP. Please confirm your acceptance of the requirements stated above and in Section 1.4.3.3. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



2.4.3.4 Inbound Mail Screening

1. The mail services respondent will be responsible for the screening of all inbound mail (including items delivered by third-party carriers) for the Indiana Government Center campus, which includes the north and south buildings and the Indiana State House. Mail addressed to the Governor’s Residence will also be screened. Screening is to be conducted off site before being brought to the IGC campus for sortation and delivery.  Please confirm your acceptance of these responsibilities and detail your previous experience in screening of mail for an account at or near this size. Please confirm that you will maintain the security of confidential information during the screening process and explain how you will meet this requirement.
	



2. The respondent will be responsible for identifying a facility at which a safe, secure screening infrastructure with adequate equipment and capabilities exists or can be installed. Please describe the facility at which you would conduct these operations, including site plans. Is this location currently outfitted to handle such operations? If not, will the facility be fully ready for use by the anticipated effective date of the resulting contract, June 27, 2015?
	



3. In addition to visual screenings, the respondent will conduct scans for the following threats: dangerous items, explosives, chemical threats, biological threats, radiological/nuclear threats, hoaxes, and threatening content. Definitions of these threats are provided in the scope of work contained within this RFP. The respondent shall exceed the Department of Homeland Security’s minimum recommendations for screening equipment and processes by incorporating screening equipment in its screenings for the aforementioned threats. The minimum recommendations in question can be found on pages 53 and 54 of the Department of Homeland Security’s Best Practices for Mail Screening and Handling Processes: A Guide for the Public and Private Sectors, found here: http://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Mail_Handling_Document_NonFOUO%209-27-2012.pdf. Except where otherwise noted herein, the State does not mandate, but reserves the right to approve, the specific procedures and equipment used in the screening processes, providing that all requirements related to inbound mail screening are met. In all other areas within the referenced DHS document (e.g. personal protective equipment, training, etc.) the respondent should at least meet the DHS minimum recommendations, if not mirror its best practices.  Please describe the methods by which you will scan/check for each of these threats, including the proposed equipment to be used. Please also briefly detail how the other areas of the referenced document (e.g. personal protective equipment, training, etc.) will be addressed. Note: The State is not requiring the use of certified canine explosive screening. 
	



2.4.4 Print/Copy Services

2.4.4.1 Technology and Equipment – Print

1. Please describe your tool through which print jobs may be quoted, submitted and tracked electronically via the Internet. Please give a general idea of the types of jobs that can and cannot be submitted online, and for those that can, how quickly quotes can be returned. Is instant quoting a possibility for any job types?
	



2. Print production shall run 24 hours a day on normal business days, beginning 6 a.m. Monday through 6 p.m. Friday, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties. The respondent will adhere to the State’s holiday schedule. The respondent shall provide dedicated customer service from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m. on normal business days unless otherwise mutually agreed by both parties. With respondent’s approval, customers may make special arrangements in advance for job pick-up to occur either before or after normal business hours. Please confirm your acceptance of these requirements. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	




3. Please affirm your willingness and ability to provide graphic design services, upon request. These services will be billed at an hourly rate proposed in response to this RFP.
	



4. The Bureau of Motor Vehicles currently utilizes a program provided by the incumbent vendor that allows proofs of printed renewal reminder notices to be stored electronically. When necessary, BMV employees are able to access these electronic archives to view and print individual notices. Is your company able to provide a similar program? If so, please provide a description of the program and its functionalities. Note: Respondents are asked to provide a cost for such a solution in Section 8 of Attachment D.
	



5. DOR’s RPS system is defined in Section 1.2 of the RFP document, Definitions and Abbreviations. DOR’s transfer of files from and/or through its RPS system to the respondent’s computer system must have real-time functionality and dashboard capabilities. Please describe your abilities to meet this requirement.
	



6. While the State allows for respondents to propose hourly rates for programming of data print jobs, please describe the situations when the State will be charged these proposed rates. Additionally, the State requests that no programming rates be charged during the initial implementation period, during which the awarded respondent will prepare for all regularly recurring jobs. Please confirm your acceptance of this request. 
	



7. The respondent must have the ability to connect to and utilize data from the full array of the State’s applications, databases, and datafiles. This includes the ability to open, edit, proof and render printstreams from data streams provided in the following formats: PCL, RTF, PS, PDF, Flat files, comma delimited, and tab delimited. State will create and maintain all overlays and forms including version control.  Scheduling and workflow tools must also be included to integrate with the printing and insertion systems.  Please confirm and briefly describe your abilities meet these requirements. You may also note any additional file formats you are able to accept.
	



8. The respondent will supply printstream engineering tools for advanced hard copy and digital distribution requirements and software to interface and produce input files for mail tracking operations.  Production systems must be capable of reading 2D barcodes, OMR marks, OCR, planetary codes and Post-net barcodes.  Inserting technology must be capable of direct-connect file based processing to ensure 100% mailpiece integrity. The system must provide full reporting, reconciliation, and management of all insertion, reprint and mail jobs.  Reprints must be reconciled against the original print stream to insure that 100% of all documents have been printed before the original job is marked closed. Instantaneous notification of exceptions and errors must be provided.  Please confirm and describe your abilities to meet these requirements.
	



9. The respondent must be capable of completing the following processes and services with regard to data print jobs: mail merge, address verification, data formatting, print suppression, householding, selective inserting, balancing and reconciliation. Please briefly describe your capabilities of providing any or all of these services when necessary.
	



10. Storyboards for specific jobs are to be automated, thus enabling changes and updates to be done in an efficient and timely manner.  Changes are to be tracked and historical data maintained. Please describe your abilities to meet these requirements. 
	



11. DOR’s transfer of files from and/or through its RPS system to the respondent’s computer system must have real-time functionality and dashboard capabilities. Please describe your abilities to meet these requirements.
	



12. Please detail your experience in creating print/copy on demand from existing forms.  Indicate software and special features of the respondent’s technology regarding forms.  Describe how the respondent's experience in print/copy digitization can benefit the State.  Detail your ability to maintain a print library.
	



13. The respondent will have distinct environments for testing and production of data print jobs. Please describe your abilities to meet this requirement.
	



14. The State wishes to avoid manual insertion and envelope stuffing as much as possible and is hoping to utilize equipment, provided by and owned by the respondent, capable of automating larger mailings – i.e. fifteen (15) pages. Please explain how the equipment you’ve proposed to use features such capabilities and can reduce the need for manual insertions.
	



15. Correspondence must be tracked from print job inception through delivery to USPS by multiple identification numbers. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement and describe your ability to meet it.
	



16. The respondent must be able to place processed files on a secure server through which agencies may review and approve them. Files are not to be printed and mailed until the respondent receives approval from the agency. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement and describe your ability to meet it.
	



17. Scan lines and gray scale will be printed on some DOR forms and must meet DOR specifications. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not agree to the specifications as written, please describe.
	



2.4.4.2 Delivery Factors

1. Please provide typical turnaround times on print/copy production for various job categories (bound print/copy, forms, envelopes, general commercial print, and reprographics) to which the State should expect the respondent to adhere. Additionally, please indicate the respondent's willingness to guarantee turnaround times.  In the event that the respondent does not deliver product based on an agreed-upon turnaround time, suggest penalties for not meeting promised turnaround time.
	



2. The State will occasionally require rush orders.  Please describe how the respondent defines a rush order, and how the respondent will ensure that rush orders will be delivered on-time (using the definition in Attachment B), even if the respondent does not have the capacity to complete the order on-site.  Surcharges for rush orders will be limited to operator overtime charges.
	



3. The respondent will maintain job requirements and processes for any identified special production needs of agencies. Additionally, the respondent will document job specifications of regularly occurring data print jobs. The specifications – minus any information that could be reasonably deemed proprietary – will remain the property of the State. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



4. All materials provided and/or created by or for participating agencies of the State, including artwork, negatives, film, digital files, and/or photographs used to produce any of the items will become property of the State. No materials shall be altered in any way without the express written consent of the using agency. The respondent shall retain film negatives and/or digital files pursuant to Professional Services Contract Clause 4, Access to Records. At the end of the contract term, the respondent shall contact the using agency for approval before any stored materials are properly discarded. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



5. Unless otherwise stated within the specifications of an individual job, the following percentages and overruns shall be considered good delivery:
- For quantities of 25,000 and under, the amount shall be limited to 3 percent over
- For quantities of 50,001 to 249,000, the amount shall be limited to 2 percent over
- For quantities of 250,000 and larger, the amount shall be limited to 1 percent over
The State will not pay for any overages when the applicable percentage is exceeded. The State will not incur charges for overages over the per-impression or click fee. Quantity insufficiency is unacceptable in all instances. Please confirm your acceptance. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirements as written, please explain.
	



6. The respondent will have State employees provide written approval (including via e-mail) on each proof prior to proceeding with job production. Final products will match approved proofs, including all changes made at final approval. Each job must meet, at a minimum, the technical specifications detailed in the SLAs and maintain content integrity (i.e. text, graphics and pagination) at all times. Jobs received by the respondent that are not deemed print ready will be returned by the respondent to the submitter for correction, or submitter may be subject to text/graphics/pagination preparation charges if the respondent is requested to complete the changes on behalf of the customer. Please confirm your acceptance of these requirements. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not agree to the requirements as written, please explain.
	



7. The respondent will meet a production delivery standard of 100 percent for collation of all books for those deadlines that are agreed to in writing and in advance of each project. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not agree to the requirement as written, please explain.
	



8. Variable imaging will be laser quality – 200 DPI or better – unless otherwise authorized by the ordering agency. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirement as written, please explain.
	



9. If necessary to ensure delivery of an acceptable product, the respondent agrees to perform, at no additional cost, critical rush job replacements that are required as a result of the respondent’s error, poor quality, failure to meet SLA specifications or failure to match an approved proof. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not accept the requirement as written, please explain.
	



10. At a minimum, the respondent will be responsible for furnishing the paper stock listed in Section 1.4.4.3.18 of the RFP. The respondent also must be able to stock any items listed in the Cost Proposal, Attachment D, as needed. The respondent will also comply with the requirements listed in Section 1.4.4.3.19 and Section 1.4.4.3.20 of the RFP. Please confirm your acceptance of these requirements. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not agree to the requirements as written, please explain.
	



11. The respondent will assume all risk of loss, damage or theft of all paper and supplies provided to the respondent by the State, provided the stock is proven to be in the custody and control of the respondent when such loss, damage or theft occurs. In the event the delivered paper is lost, damaged, destroyed or stolen, the respondent will replace the items with items of like quality. Please confirm your acceptance of these requirements. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not agree to the requirements as written, please explain.
	



12. Any contracts to be scanned by the respondent will be uploaded to the required database within 24 hours of receipt. Other timelines will be mutually agreed upon receipt of documents. Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement. A YES answer is sufficient. If you do not agree to the requirement as written, please explain. 
	



2.4.4.3 Vended Print Management

1. Please describe the respondent’s plan for using subcontractors to supplement its printing capacity and/or capabilities. How quickly can the respondent regularly return quotes from its subcontractors? Under which circumstances will you solicit quotes from your subcontractors (e.g. always for price comparison, only when jobs cannot be handled internally)? And what, briefly, is the request-for-quote process you intend to use in these situations?
	



2. The State hopes to ensure aggressive pricing of vended print jobs through a sufficiently deep pool of approved printing contractors. Moreover, the State prefers that more than one of the respondent’s proposed subcontractors is capable of producing Web-printed products. How deep of a pool of subcontractors will be utilized, and how will the respondent’s proposed list of subcontractors assist the State in obtaining aggressive pricing for all vended print services? 
	



2.4.4.4 Inventory Capabilities

1. [bookmark: _GoBack]Please provide background information on the experience of the respondent in reducing inventory levels.  Also, please detail your warehousing plan for the State including facilities, staffing, transportation, etc.  The State aims to reduce the need for physical storage of documents.   
	



2. Provide a detailed plan on how the respondent will survey and analyze all documents currently in production or inventory.  Given the respondent's understanding of the State's current forms inventory and process, suggest an inventory reduction plan to reduce costs.  Specify plans for standardization and elimination of unnecessary forms and documents. Please provide an example of a successful program in a government environment.
	



3. Some State agencies, if not all, will require daily inventory reports containing usage information and remaining counts. Please describe your ability to meet this requirement, as well as any other useful reports you can provide related to inventory, usage, etc.
	



2.4.4.5 Site Floor Plan

1. The State would prefer to keep its printing operations on site at the Indiana Government Center and will only consider to moving any portions of these operations off site if it can clearly help achieve significantly greater savings and efficiencies. On-site production assumes some percentage of jobs being completed off site by the respondent or their State-approved subcontractors. First, please confirm your willingness and ability to perform the services described herein at the Indiana Government Center and include your proposed site floor plan (see attachment K for current floor plan). In doing so, please describe the types of print jobs for which off-site respondent locations and subcontractors would be utilized. Secondly, if you wish to propose an alternate approach, please do so here while explaining how this approach, if utilized, would benefit the State. Note: The State is not committing to utilizing any alternate locations proposed by respondents and is merely providing an opportunity for recommendations. Any decision to move printing operations off site will be made solely at the State’s discretion.
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